
Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

REVISED AGENDA 
Thursday, October 20, 2022 

10am- 12pm 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000249622?pwd=ZzBROVV1ZTBvNDFFUU1laGJPdUYzZz09 

Meeting ID: 850 0024 9622 
Passcode: 341208 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,83604651555#,,,,*851315# US (San Jose)
+14086380968,,83604651555#,,,,*851315# US (San Jose)

One tap mobile 
+16694449171,,85000249622#,,,,*341208# US
+16699009128,,85000249622#,,,,*341208# US (San Jose)

Dial by your location 
+1 669 444 9171 US
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 719 359 4580 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 646 931 3860 US
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 309 205 3325 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 386 347 5053 US
+1 564 217 2000 US
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

Meeting ID: 850 0024 9622 
Passcode: 341208 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmjxO7dU5 

REMOTE MEETING VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE Watch via Zoom: In accordance with Governor Gavin Newsom’s statewide 
order for all residents to “Stay at Home” – and with the numerous local and state proclamations, orders and 
supplemental directions – aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-
19 virus.  

Reentry Council meetings will be held through videoconferencing will allow remote public comment via the 
videoconference or through the number noted above. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely 
by submitting written comments electronically to victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org. These comments will be made part 
of the official public record in these matters and shall be brought to the attention of the members of the Reentry 
Council member. Explanatory and/or Supporting Documents, if any, will be posted at: https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/ 

Note:  Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item. 

Page 1 of 33

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000249622?pwd=ZzBROVV1ZTBvNDFFUU1laGJPdUYzZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmjxO7dU5
https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/


Reentry Council  
City & County of San Francisco 

1. Call to Order and Introductions.  
 

2. Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California Government Code Section 54953(e). (discussion 
and possible action). 

a. The Reentry Council will consider adoption of a resolution making findings that newly-enacted 
Government Code Section 54953(e) requires in order to allow the Reentry Council to hold meetings 
remotely, as currently required under local law, without complying with infeasible Brown Act 
requirements.  
 

3. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement (discussion only).    
 

4. Welcome Supervisor Stefani to the Reentry Council  (discussion only). 
 

5. Welcome the four new Reentry Council Members Appointed by the Board of Supervisors  (discussion only). 
 

6. Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for “Discussion Only.”  (NOTE: public comment on items listed as 
“possible action” will occur during that agenda’s time).  
 

7. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of July 28, 2022 Council Meeting  (discussion & possible action).  
 

8. Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).    
a. Staff updates  

i. APD Reentry Services 
i. Pretrial Pilot Program Launch 

 
b. Subcommittee updates 

i. Direct Services Subcommittee 
ii. Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee 
iii. Women 1st Subcommitte 

 
9. Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission, Collaborative 

Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR  (discussion only). 
 

10. Racial Equity Work Updates – Criminal justice Racial Equity Workgroup Update and other Departments are 
welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department (discussion only). 
 

11. Presentation: San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project –Programatic Information & Outcome Data – David 
Mauroff (discussion only). 

 
12. Presentation: CROP Overview. Jesse Foshay & Kit Barry (discussion only). 

 
13. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only)  

14. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council 

(discussion only) 

15. Adjournment.  

Page 2 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT TO THE REENTRY COUNCIL  
Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time the proceedings begin, written 
comments regarding the subject of the meeting.  These comments will be made a part of the official public record, and brought to 
the attention of the Reentry Council.  Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy 
Planner, Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, CA 94103, or via email: 
reentry.council@sfgov.org.  

MEETING MATERIALS  
Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s website at http://sfreentry.com 
or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal business hours.  The material can be FAXed or mailed to you upon 
request. 

ACCOMMODATIONS  
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the meeting, 
please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days before the meeting.  

TRANSLATION  
Interpreters for languages other than English are available on request. Sign language interpreters are also available on request. For 
either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business 
days before the meeting. 

CHEMICAL SENSITIVITIES 
To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental i llness, multiple chemical sensitivity or 
related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based 
products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. 

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other 
agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted 
before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from 
the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's web site at: www.sfgov.org/sunshine.  

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, 
CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE: 
Administrator 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
City Hall, Room 244 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,  
San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.  
Telephone: (415) 554-7724 
Fax: (415) 554-5163 
E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org

CELL PHONES 
The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please 
be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a 
cell  phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices. 

LOBBYIST ORDINANCE 

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by  San 
Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code sections 2.100-2.160) to register and report lobbying 
activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 
3900, San Francisco CA 94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/ 

Page 3 of 33

mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 1   

DRAFT Minutes 
Thursday, July 28, 2022 

10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
Virtual Meeting 

 

 

Zoom Information: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84613361632?pwd=d2RnOGg2LytXV2trZERKakRBQUJHdz09 
Meeting ID: 836 0465 1555 

Passcode: 851315 
 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,83604651555#,,,,*851315# US (San Jose) 
+14086380968,,83604651555#,,,,*851315# US (San Jose) 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 836 0465 1555 

Passcode: 851315 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbEIiWaVy 

 
 

 
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE Watch via Zoom: In accordance with Governor Gavin Newsom’s 
statewide order for all residents to “Stay at Home” – and with the numerous local and state proclamations, orders 
and supplemental directions – aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the 
COVID-19 virus. 

 
Reentry Council meetings will be held through videoconferencing will allow remote public comment via the 
videoconference or through the number noted above. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely 
by submitting written comments electronically to victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org. These comments will be made part 
of the official public record in these matters and shall be brought to the attention of the members of the Reentry 
Council member. Explanatory and/or Supporting Documents, if any, will be posted at: https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/ 

 
Note: Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 33

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84613361632?pwd=d2RnOGg2LytXV2trZERKakRBQUJHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84613361632?pwd=d2RnOGg2LytXV2trZERKakRBQUJHdz09
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org.
https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Page | 2 

Members Present: 

District Attorney Brooke Jenkins (Chair); Sheriff Paul Miyamoto (SFSO), Chief Cristel Tullock (SFAPD), Angela Chan for 
Manohar Raju (Public Defender), Sheenia Branner (Mayoral Appointee), Robin Candler for Grant Colfax (DPH), 
Assistant Deputy Chief Amy Rizor for Anthony Castellano (US Probation), David McCahon for Trent Rohr (HSA), Karen 
Roye (DCSS), Tajuana Gray (OEWD), Michael Brown (BOS Appointee), Jabari Jackson (BOS Appointee), Jasmine 
Dawson for Marla Su (DCYF), Antonio Napolean (Mayoral Appointee), Allen Harven (Mayoral Appointee), Gabe Cavillo 
for Chief Katherine Miller (Juvenile Probation), Kaitlyn Motley for Noelle Simmons (HSH),  

Members Absent: 

James Caldwell for Mayor Breed, Chief William Scott (SFPD), Gregory Sims (CDCR), Mark Culkins (Superior Court), 
Yolanda Morissette (BOS Appointee), Oscar Salinas (BOS Appointee). 

1. Call to Order and Introductions (discussion only)
District Attorney Brooke Jenkins called the meeting to order. She thanked Council members and members of the
interested public for attending the meeting.  She acknowledged the other five Co-Chairs:

• Mano Raju, Public Defender.
• Brooke Jenkins, District Attorney.
• James Caldwell, representing Mayor London Breed’s Office
• Cristel Tullock, Chief of Adult Probation
• Jabari Jackson, representing the Justice Involved members

Victoria Westbrook completed Reentry Council Roll Call. 

2. Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California Government Code Section 54953(e). (discussion
and possible action).

The Reentry Council will consider adoption of a resolution making findings that newly-enacted Government
Code Section 54953(e) requires in order to allow the Reentry Council to hold meetings remotely, as currently
required under local law, without complying with infeasible Brown Act requirements.

District Attorney Jenkins asked for a motion to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings under California Government
Code Section 54953(e).

Director Roye made the motion.
Seconded by Sheriff Miyamoto.
No Public Comment.
Motion Passed

3. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement
District Attorney Jenkins read the Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement.

4. Public Comment on Items listed as for “Discussion Only” (discussion only)

No Public Comment

Page 5 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 3   

 

5. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022 (discussion & possible action)  

Chief Tullock made a motion to Accept Minutes.  

Sheenia Branner seconded the motion. 

Motion passed.  

 

6.  Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).    

a. Staff updates  

i. APD Reentry Services 

1. Minna Launch 

2. Pretrial Pilot Program 

b. Subcommittee updates 

i. Direct Services Subcommittee 

ii. Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee 

iii. Women 1st Subcommittee 

 

Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Policy Planner for the San Francisco Adult Probation Department, provided updates 
regarding the 3 Reentry Council Subcommittees: 

• The Legislation, Policy & Procedures Subcommittee has primarily focused on the legislation brought to the 
Council today. Their July 27, 2021 meeting was rescheduled to August 29, 2022 to plan for efforts to lobby 
with the Governor on the bills supported by the State Legislation Committee (SLC). 

• The Direct Services Subcommittee will be moderating 3 panels at the upcoming Reentry Resource Fair on 
September 9, 2022. Their next meeting is on September 19, 2022 

• At the last Women 1st Subcommittee meeting, Epiphany Center presented information about their Road 
to Resilience program. Their next meeting will be on September 12, 2022 in which the Department on the 
Status of Women will be there to continue discussions regarding economic stability and security for justice 
involved women. 

 

Steve Adami, Director, Reentry Division of the Adult Probation provided updates regarding the Launch of the 
Minna Project, a 75 bed Dual Diagnosis Transitional Housing Program which has onsite clinical case management. 
Steve also provided an update on the upcoming Pretrial Pilot Program, a 15 bed Transitional Housing Program 
specifically for people on pretrial diversion. Prioritization will be given to Assertive Case Management (ACM) 
clients. 

 
7. Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission, 

Collaborative Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR  (discussion only). 
 
Robin Candler reported that DPH will receive continued Prop 47 funding to continue the STARR Program. 

 
8. Racial Equity Work Updates – Criminal justice Racial Equity Workgroup Update and other Departments are 

welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department (discussion only).  

Page 6 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Page | 4 

Victoria Westbrook provided an update on the Criminal Justice Racial Equity Workgroup. Their July meeting was 
cancelled. Their next meeting will be in September. 

Precious Malone provided a Racial Equity update for the Adult Probation Department. 

Tajuanna Gray provided an update for the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. 

9. Current State Legislation (discussion & possible action).
a. AB 1816, AB 2023
b. SB 936, SB 990, SB 1008, SB 1106, SB 1427

The Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee brought the 7 remaining bills still active before the Reentry 
Council for support. These 7 bills were presented to the Council and each were subsequently voted on. The results 
were as follows:  

AB 1816 
Asm. Isaac Bryan, District 54, Democrat 
Asm. Ash Kalra, District 27, Democrat 
Reentry Housing and Workforce Development Program 

AB 1816 would create the Reentry Housing Program to provide five-year renewable grants to counties to fund 
evidence-based housing based services interventions, and employment services to allow people with recent 
histories of incarceration to exit homelessness, remain stably housed, and become successfully employed. 

Director Roye made a motion to support AB 1816. 
Antonio Napoleon seconded the motion. 

Council Member Vote 
Public Defender Aye 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell Absent 
Adult Probation Department Aye 
District Attorney Aye 
Sheriff’s Office Aye 
DPH Aye 

 US Probation Aye 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Aye 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Aye 
HAS Aye 
DCYF Aye 
CSS Aye 
OEWD Aye 
SF Police Department Absent 

Page 7 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 5   

Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner  Aye 
Michael Brown  Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas  Absent 
Jabari Jackson  Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

 
17 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions  
Motion passed. 
 
AB 2023 
Asm. Steve Bennett, District 37, Democrat 
Jails: Discharge Plans 
 
AB 2023 (Bennett) would require counties to adopt discharge plans for persons suffering from mental illness.  
 
Entitles a person incarcerated in, or recently released from, a county jail to have access to up to three free 
telephone calls in the county jail to plan for a safe and successful release. 
 
Michael Brown made a motion to support AB 2023. 
Jabari Jackson seconded the motion. 

 
Council Member Vote 
Public Defender  Aye 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell  Absent 
Adult Probation Department  Aye 
District Attorney  Aye 
Sheriff’s Office Aye 
DPH  Aye 

 US Probation Aye 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Aye 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Aye 
HAS Aye 
DCYF  Absent 
CSS  Aye 
OEWD  Aye 
SF Police Department  Absent 
Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner  Aye 

Page 8 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Page | 6 

Michael Brown Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas Absent 
Jabari Jackson Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

16 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions 
Motion passed. 

SB 936 
Sen. Steve Glazer, District 07, Democrat 
California Conservation Corps: forestry training center: formerly incarcerated individuals: reporting 

SB 936 would create a forestry training center in Northern California. This center would be a collaboration between 
the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CalFire), California Conservation Corps (CCC) and the California 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (CDCR), and would train former inmates in forestry and vegetation 
management.  

Upon completion, these trainees would be eligible for an entry-level forestry or vegetation management position 
the state. This center would expand workforce development in forestry while reducing recidivism rates by creating 
a pathway to gainful employment. 

Antonio Napoleon made a motion to support SB 936. 
Jabari Jackson seconded the motion. 

Council Member Vote 
Public Defender Aye 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell Absent 
Adult Probation Department Aye 
District Attorney Aye 
Sheriff’s Office Aye 
DPH Aye 

 US Probation Aye 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Aye 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Aye 
HAS Aye 
DCYF Aye 
CSS Aye 
OEWD Aye 
SF Police Department Absent 
Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner Aye 

Page 9 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 7   

Michael Brown  Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas  Absent 
Jabari Jackson  Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

 
17 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions  
Motion passed. 

 
SB 990 
Sen. Steve Glazer, District 07, Democrat 
California Conservation Corps: forestry training center: formerly incarcerated individuals: reporting 
 
SB 990 would allow people on parole the option to transfer from prison directly to the county where a post-
secondary educational or vocational training program opportunity is located rather than to the county of last legal 
residence, so long as the transfer does not increase public safety concerns or conflict with existing mandatory 
release restrictions. 
 
Director Roye made a motion to support SB 990. 
Allen Harven seconded the motion. 

 
Council Member Vote 
Public Defender  Aye 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell  Absent 
Adult Probation Department  Aye 
District Attorney  Aye 
Sheriff’s Office Aye 
DPH  Aye 

 US Probation Aye 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Aye 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Aye 
HAS Aye 
DCYF  Aye 
CSS  Aye 
OEWD  Aye 
SF Police Department  Absent 
Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner  Aye 
Michael Brown  Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas  Absent 

Page 10 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 8   

Jabari Jackson  Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

 
17 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions  
Motion passed. 

 
SB 1008 
Sen. Josh Becker, District 13, Democrat 
Corrections: Telecommunications 
 
SB 1008 eliminates telecommunication fees for all communications to and from currently incarcerated people in 
California’s local jails and state prisons. 
 
Sheriff Miyamoto made a motion to support SB 1008. 
Chief Tullock seconded the motion. 

 
Council Member Vote 
Public Defender  Aye 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell  Absent 
Adult Probation Department  Aye 
District Attorney  Aye 
Sheriff’s Office Aye 
DPH  Aye 

 US Probation Aye 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Aye 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Nay 
HAS Aye 
DCYF  Absent 
CSS  Aye 
OEWD  Aye 
SF Police Department  Absent 
Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner  Aye 
Michael Brown  Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas  Absent 
Jabari Jackson  Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

 
15 Ayes, 1 Nays, 0 Abstentions  
Motion passed. 

Page 11 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Page | 9 

SB 1106 
Sen. Scott Wiener, District 11, Democrat 
The Fresh Start Act 

SB 1106 precludes courts from denying a request for expungement of a conviction based on outstanding debt 
related to restitution. 

Jabari Jackson made a motion to support SB 1106. 
Sheenia Branner seconded the motion. 

Council Member Vote 
Public Defender Aye 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell Absent 
Adult Probation Department Nay 
District Attorney Abstain 
Sheriff’s Office Abstain 
DPH Abstain 

 US Probation Abstain 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Abstain 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Aye 
HAS Aye 
DCYF Aye 
CSS Aye 
OEWD Aye 
SF Police Department Absent 
Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner Aye 
Michael Brown Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas Absent 
Jabari Jackson Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

11 Ayes, 1 Nays, 5 Abstentions 
Motion passed. 

SB 1427 
Sen. Rosilicie Ochoa Bogh, District 23, Republican 
Board of State and Community Corrections: Homeless and Mental Health Court and Transitioning Home Grant 
Programs 

Page 12 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 10   

SB 1427 would create two grant programs:  
• a grant program to help counties to establish or expand collaborative mental health and homeless courts 

and  
• a grant program for counties to institute re-entry services for jail inmates at risk of becoming homeless 

upon release. 
 
Sheenia Branner made a motion to support SB 1427. 
Chief Tullock seconded the motion. 

 
Council Member Vote 
Public Defender  Nay 
Mayor’s Office- James Caldwell  Absent 
Adult Probation Department  Aye 
District Attorney  Aye 
Sheriff’s Office Aye 
DPH  Aye 

 US Probation Aye 
Superior Court Absent 
HSH Aye 
State Parole Absent 
Juvenile Probation Department Aye 
HAS Aye 
DCYF  Aye 
CSS  Aye 
OEWD  Aye 
SF Police Department  Absent 
Antonio Napoleon Aye 
Allen Harven Aye 
Sheenia Branner  Aye 
Michael Brown  Aye 
Yolanda Morissette Absent 
Oscar Salinas  Absent 
Jabari Jackson  Aye 
BOS Representative Vacant 

 
16 Ayes, 1 Nays, 0 Abstentions  
Motion passed. 

 

10. Presentation:  “Housing Needs of Justice Involved Adults.”  A research project led by the Reentry Division of 
the San Francisco Adult probation Department and the Direct Services Subcommittee of the Reentry Council.  
Destiny Pletsch – discussion only). 

 
Destiny Pletsch, Reentry Services Manager from the Reentry Division of the Adult Probation Department presented 
preliminary findings of the “Housing Needs of Justice Involved Adults” research project. This mixed methods 

Page 13 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

 

Page | 11   

research project was conducted by the Reentry Division in conjunction with the Direct Services Subcommittee of 
the Reentry Council. A formal report with recommendations will be presented to the Reentry Council in the 
October meeting. 
 
Steve Adami answered questions regarding the presentation from the Council members.  

 
 

11. Farewell to BOS Appointees – Jabari Jackson, Yolanda Morrissette, Michael Brown, Oscar Salinas (discussion 
only) 

District Attorney Jenkins thanked the 4 current Board of Supervisors’ Appointees to the Council for their service 
on the Council and the contributions they have made. 

Director Roye, Chief Tullock, and Sheenia Branner also thanked them for their service and the work they have 
done while on the council. 

District Attorney Jenkin explained that recruitment for the 4, now vacant positions will be conducted during 
August so that the seats will be filled by the October Reentry Council meeting. She further explained that current 
appointees can reapply for the vacant seats. 

  

12. Introduction of the Just Home Project – Kaitlyn Motley (discussion only). 

Kate Motley, the Strategy and Planning Lead from the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing 
presented information on the Just Home Project, a new initiative led by the MacArthur Foundation and the 
Urban Institute intended to develop supportive housing solutions for justice-involved adults.  

 

13. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only).  

Jabari Jackson expressed concern that he has asked numerous times for a presentation from Pretrial regarding 
their outcomes and there has yet to be a presentation. 

 

Victoria Westbrook explained that Pretrial will be invited to present at the October Reentry Council Meeting. 

 

Michael Brown would like the Sheriff’s Office to present about the current status of programming inside the SF 
County Jails and in person visits.  

 

Chief Tullock welcomed District Attorney Jenkins and looks forward to their working together. 

 

14. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry 
Council (discussion only). 

Numerous members of the public gave comments. Key points were the current state of the open air drug use and 
sales in the City and the need for culturally specific and appropriate services for monolingual Spanish speakers. 

 

15. Adjournment.  
 

The next Reentry Council Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 27, 2022 at 10 a.m. 
 

Page 14 of 33



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Page | 12 

Jabari Jackson made a motion to Adjourn. 
Sheenia Branner seconded the motion. 
Motion Passed 

Meeting Adjourned  

Page 15 of 33



CROP Overview for SF Reentry Council
October 20, 2022

Jesse Foshay
Jason Bryant

Kit Berry
Mike Stone

Page 16 of 33



CROP’s History
● 2008 - Founded by a father and son who believed that incarceration should 

not determine people’s ability to make a positive impact in the world

● 2010 - Under CROP’s sponsorship, a team of incarcerated leaders created 

an Alcohol & Other Drug Certification program 

● 2014 - Successfully helped certify 33 people serving life-terms as counselors 

who helped transform the culture of CTF Soledad

● 2020 - After establishing a scholarship that warranted national news 

coverage and serving over 1,000 people, the founders of CROP were 

released from prison and turned their focus to reentry

● 2021 - Awarded a grant for $28.5 million from the State of California to 

launch a three-year pilot program called Ready 4 Life

Page 17 of 33



CROP’s Theory of Change

CROP is dedicated to reforming California’s criminal justice landscape through holistic approaches to reentry that reduce 
recidivism among people returning from California state prisons. CROP envisions a society that invests in people over 
punishment and seeks to contribute to this vision, through our mission of reimagining reentry through a holistic, human 
centered approach to advocacy, housing, and skill development for future work.

We aim to test the hypothesis that: If justice-involved people are successfully prepared and placed in technology and 
knowledge-based jobs for the Future of Work, then, people with conviction records will be valued catalysts for increased 
economic prosperity and community healing.

Page 18 of 33



Ready 4 Life Career Development Program

Page 19 of 33



Ready 4 Life Career Development Program
Program Applicant Eligibility:

● Be currently incarcerated (and will be released in time for their
Ready 4 Life start date) or have been released from a California
state/federal prison within the past five years

● Be able to communicate and learn in English

● Have a birth certificate and ability to obtain state ID

● Have at least a GED (college preferred)

● Demonstrate stable housing for 9 months (for non-residential
Fellows)

Exclusions:

● Individuals with sex offenses

● Major disciplinary infractions/acts of violence
within 12 months

● Individuals that require ADL (“Activities of
Daily Living”) assistance

● Individuals with a history of serious mental
illnesses

● Individuals required to have substance abuse
treatment for active addiction issues

Page 20 of 33



Ready 4 Life Career Development Program

Program Fellows Receive: 

● 12 months intensively developing a growth mindset 
and market-driven skills in tech-related careers

● Access to employment opportunities with salaries 
starting at $60k/year

● Necessary resources to gain valuable skills, like a 
laptop computer

● Support with finding permanent housing solutions 
within the community

● Monthly stipend to help ease the economic stressors 
of reentry and enable full program participation 

● Room and board at our Bay Area Career Campus (up 
to 15 Fellows per cohort)

Program Logistics

Bay Area Career Campus

● In-person learning
● 30 person rolling cohorts (15 on-campus + 15 

off-campus)
● Mon-Fri, 9am-5pm

LA Service Program

● Hybrid learning (virtual instruction, in-person 
events)

● 25 person rolling cohorts
● Mon-Fri, 4:30pm-8pm

Page 21 of 33



Connecting to Ready 4 Life

Apply for CROP’s Ready 4 Life career 
development program:

● Visit website at www.croporganization.org
● Call CROP’s Parole Support Line at (916) 345-4308
● Email us at applications@croporg.org
● Use our QR Code

Page 22 of 33

http://www.croporganization.org
mailto:applications@croporg.org


Thank You!

Page 23 of 33



   

Reentry Council of the City and County of 
San Francisco 

2022 Meeting Calendar 
 
Council Meetings: 4th Thursday of the first month of each quarter 10am-12pm 

• January 27, 2022 - Zoom Meeting 
• April 28, 2022  - Zoom Meeting 
• July 28, 2022 - Zoom Meeting 
• October 20, 2022  - Zoom Meeting – Now meeting 3rd Thursday of the first month of each 

quarter 10am – 12pm 
 
Subcommittee on Direct Services: 2nd Wednesday of all uneven months 5:30-7:30pm 

• January 12, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• March 9, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• May 11, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• July 18, 2022  - Zoom Meeting  - Now meeting  3rd Monday of all uneven months 5:30-7:30pm 
• September 19, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• November 21, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 

 
Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy and Practices: 4th Wednesday of all uneven months 2:30-4:30pm  

• January 26, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• March 23, 2022  - Zoom Meeting 
• May 25, 2022- Zoom Meeting 
• July 27, 2022 - Zoom Meeting 
• September 28, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• November 23, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 

 
Women 1st Subcommittee: 1st Wednesday of all uneven months 5:30-7:30pm  

• January 5, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 
• March 2, 2022 - Zoom Meeting 
• May 4, 2022 - Zoom Meeting 
• July 11, 2022 - Zoom Meeting  - Now meeting  2nd Monday of all uneven months 5:30-7:30pm 
• September 12, 2022   - Zoom Meeting  
• November 14, 2022   - Zoom Meeting 

 
Slated Community Events supported and/or hosted by Reentry Council   

• 10h Annual Restorative Justice Reentry Conference and Resource Fair at Cathedral of St. Mary of the 
Assumption Event Center located at 1111 Gough St  - Friday, September 9, 2022 
 

Page 24 of 33



 

Reentry Council  
of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of October 12, 2022 
   Page 1 of 3 

Roster of Members 
 

Co-Chairs 
 

Cristel Tullock 
Chief Adult Probation Officer 
Adult Probation Department 
City & County of San Francisco 
850 Bryant Street, 2nd floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: La Shaun Williams 
lashaun.r.williams@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1687 
 
Brooke Jenkins 
District Attorney  
Office of the District Attorney 
City & County of San Francisco 
350 Rhode Island Street 
North Building, Suite 400N 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
districtattorney@sfgov.org 
Confidential Assistant: Robyn Burke 
robyn.burke@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1742 
Alternate: Tara Anderson  
tara.anderson@sfgov.org 
 
Paul Miyamoto 
Sheriff 
Sheriff’s Office 
City & County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 456 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
sheriff@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: Johanna Saenz 
johanna.saenz@sfgov.org 
(415) 554-7225 
Alternate: Assistant Sheriff Tanzaneka Carter 
tanzaneka.carter@sfgov.org 

Manohar Raju 
Public Defender 
Office of the Public Defender 
City & County of San Francisco 
555 7th Street  
San Francisco, CA 94103 
manohar.raju@sfgov.org 
 (415) 553-1677 
Executive Assistant: Angela Auyong 
angela.auyong@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1677 
Alternate: Valerie Ibarra 
valerie.ibarra@sfgpv.org 
 
Honorable London Breed 
Mayor of San Francisco 
City & County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 200 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Alternate: James Caldwell 
james.caldwell@sfgov.org  
 
 
Vacant 
Formerly Incarcerated Co-Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 33

mailto:Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org
mailto:districtattorney@sfgov.org
mailto:robyn.burke@sfgov.org
mailto:tara.anderson@sfgov.org
mailto:sheriff@sfgov.org
mailto:johanna.saenz@sfgov.org
mailto:tanzaneka.carter@sfgov.org
mailto:manohar.raju@sfgov.org
mailto:angela.auyong@sfgov.org
mailto:valerie.ibarra@sfgpv.org
mailto:james.caldwell@sfgov.org


 

Reentry Council  
of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of October 12, 2022 
   Page 2 of 3 

 
Other Members 
 
Catherine Stefani 
Supervisor, District 2 
Board of Supervisors 
City Hall 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Francisco, Ca 94102-4689 
Catherine.stefani@sfgov.org 
 
William Scott 
Chief 
Police Department 
City & County of San Francisco 
1245 Third St. 
San Francisco, CA 94158 
William.scott@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: Rowena Carr 
Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org 
(415) 837-7000 
Alternate: Cmdr. Peter Walsh 
peter.walsh@sfgov.org 
 
Katy Miller  
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
Juvenile Probation Department 
City & County of San Francisco 
375 Woodside Avenue, Room 243 
San Francisco, CA 94127 
Executive Secretary: Sheryl Cowan 
Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org 
(415) 753-7556 
 
Antonio Napoleon 
Mayoral Appointee 
ANapoleon@westside-health.org 
 
Allen Harven 
Mayoral Appointee 
allenharven42@gmail.com 
 
 

 
Sheenia Branner 
Mayoral Appointee 
Sheenia.branner@glorisagift.org 
 
Mark Culkins 
Court Administrator 
Superior Court of California, County of San 
Francisco 
mculkins@sftc.org 
 
Vacant 
Board Appointee (Seat 1) 
 
Vacant 
Board Appointee (Seat 2) 
 
Vacant 
Board Appointee (Seat 3) 
 
Vacant 
Board Appointee (Seat 4) 
 
 
Cynthia Nagendra 
Deputy Director for Planning, Performance 
& Strategy 
Department of Homelessness & Supportive 
Housing 
cynthia.nagendra1@sfgov.org 
 
Anthony Castellano 
Chief U.S. Probation Officer  
Northern District of California 
U.S. Probation Office, U.S. District Court 
450 Golden Gate Avenue 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
anthony_castellano@canp.uscourts.gov 
Alternate: Jennifer James 
Assistant Deputy Chief 
jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov 
 
 

Page 26 of 33

mailto:Catherine.stefani@sfgov.org
mailto:William.scott@sfgov.org
mailto:Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org
mailto:Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org
mailto:ANapoleon@westside-health.org
mailto:allenharven42@gmail.com
mailto:Sheenia.branner@glorisagift.org
mailto:mculkins@sftc.org
mailto:cynthia.nagendra1@sfgov.org
mailto:anthony_castellano@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov


 

Reentry Council  
of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of October 12, 2022 
   Page 3 of 3 

 
Dr. Grant Colfax 
Department of Public Health 
City & County of San Francisco 
1380 Howard Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Alternate: Angelica Almeida  
 angelica.almeida@sfdph.org 
2nd Alternate: Robin Candler 
robin.candler@sfgov.org 
 
Karen Roye 
Director 
Department of Child Support Services 
City & County of San Francisco 
617 Mission Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
karen.roye@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Freda Randolph Glenn 
freda.randolph@sfgov.org 
 
Trent Rhorer 
Executive Director 
Human Services Agency 
City & County of San Francisco 
170 Otis Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
trent.rhorer@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Susie Smith 
susie.smith@sfgov.org 
 
Maria Su 
Director 
Department of Children, Youth & Their 
Families 
City & County of San Francisco 
1390 Market Street, Suite 900 
San Francisco, CA 94102  
maria@dcyf.org 
Executive Assistant: Marisol Beaulac 
(415)554-3510 
Alternate: Jasmine Dawson  
Jasmine.dawson@sfgov.org 

 
Gregory Sims  
District Administrator 
Division of Parole Operations 
California Department of Corrections & 
Rehabilitation 
1727 Mission St. 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
gregory.sims@cdcr.ca.gov 
 (415) 703-3164 
Alternate: Tom Porter 
Tom.Porter@cdcr.ca.gov 
Alternate 2: Dean Onyanga 
Onyanga.Dean@cdcr.ca.gov 
 
Kate Sofis  
Director of Office of Economic and Workforce 
Development  
City & County of San Francisco  
Alternate: Tajuana Gray  
tajuana.gray@sfgov.org  
Alternate 2: Ken Nim  
ken.nim@sfgov.org 
 
Staff 
Victoria Westbrook 
Reentry Policy Planner/ 
Women’s Gender Responsive Coordinator 
Adult Probation Department 
Community Assessment & Services Center 
564 6th Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 
(415) 930-2200 

For more information about the  
Reentry Council of the City and  
Council of San Francisco, please  
visit www.sfgov.org/reentry 
 

Page 27 of 33

mailto:angelica.almeida@sfdph.org
mailto:robin.candler@sfgov.org
mailto:karen.roye@sfgov.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:trent.rhorer@sfgov.org
mailto:james.whelly@sfgov.org
mailto:Jasmine.dawson@sfgov.org
mailto:gregory.sims@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:Tom.Porter@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:tajuana.gray@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org


 

Subcommittee on Direct Services 
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of September 14, 2022  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Roster of Members 

 
Alisea Wesley-Clark (Co-Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
HER House Program Director 
Westside Community Services 
aclark@westside-health.org 
 
Sheenia Branner (Co-Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Mayoral Appointee to Reentry Council 
rsn.sheenia@gmail.com 
 
Jeanie Austin  
Jail and Reentry Services Librarian 
San Francisco Public Library 
Jeanie.austin@sfpl.org 
Or 
Rachel Kinnon 
San Francisco Public Library 
rachel.kinnon@sfpl.org 
 
Emeterio Garcia 
Director, Community Justice Center (CJC) 
SF Dept. of Public Health 
emeterio.garcia@sfdph.org 
 
Freda Randolph Glenn 
Operations Manager 
Department of Child Support Services 
freda.randolph@sfgov.org 
 
Destiny Pletsch 
Reentry Services Coordinator 
San Francisco Adult Probation Department 
destiny.pletsch@sfgov.org 
 
Amarita King 
Deputy Probation Officer 
San Francisco Adult Probation Department 
amarita.king@sfgov.org 
 
 

Ali Riker 
Director of Programs  
San Francisco Sheriff’s Office 
alissa.riker@sfgov.org 

Or 
Andy Dulay 
San Francisco Sheriff’s Office 
dennis.dulay@sfgov.org  
 
William Palmer  
Member of the Reentry Community 
Communication Fellow 
Legal Services for Prisoners with Children 
williammpalmer2@gmail.com 
 
Josef Norris 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Development Coordinator 
Code Tenderloin 
onpaperpress@gmail.com 
 
Jabari Jackson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Westside Community Services 
jrj41510@gmail.com 
 
John I. Grayson III 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Student - SFSU 
johngrayson228@yahoo.com 
 
Healther Leach 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Housing Stabilizing Case Manager 
Episcopal Community Services 
hleach@ecs-sf.org 
 
Emmeline Sun 
Clinical supervisor 
Citywide Forensic Team (UCSF) 
emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu 
 

Page 28 of 33

mailto:aclark@westside-health.org
mailto:rsn.sheenia@gmail.com
mailto:Jeanie.austin@sfpl.org
mailto:rachel.kinnon@sfpl.org
mailto:emeterio.garcia@sfdph.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:destiny.pletsch@sfgov.org
mailto:jrobles@healthright360.org
mailto:alissa.riker@sfgov.org
mailto:williammpalmer2@gmail.com
mailto:onpaperpress@gmail.com
mailto:jrj41510@gmail.com
mailto:johngrayson228@yahoo.com
mailto:hleach@ecs-sf.org
mailto:emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu


 

Subcommittee on Direct Services 
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of September 14, 2022  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Yolanda Morrissette 
Member of the Reentry Community 
ymorrissette00@gmail.com  
 
Jermila McCoy 
San Francisco Goodwill  
Member of the Reentry Community 
jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org 
 
John Robles 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Community Relations Manager 
HealthRIGHT360 
jrobles@halthright360.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
For more information, contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Policy Planner, 
at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or  
(415) 930-2202 or visit 
http://sfgov.org/reentry 

Page 29 of 33

mailto:ymorrissette00@gmail.com
mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:jrobles@halthright360.org


 

Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy & 
Practices 

Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of August 11, 2022  Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Roster of Members 
 

Bobby Jones-Hanley (Co-Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Founder 
Pure1 
b.jones@pure1.org 
 
William Palmer (Co-Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Communication Fellow 
Legal Services for Prisoners with Children 
williammpalmer2@gmail.com 
 
Tara Agnese 
Research Director 
San Francisco Adult Probation Department 
tara.agnese@sfgov.org 
 
Tara Anderson 
Grants & Policy Manager  
District Attorney's Office  
tara.anderson@sfgov.org 
 
Patricia Martinez 
District Attorney's Office  
patricia.e.martinez@sfgov.org 
 
Joe Calderon, CHW 
Southeast Health Clinic 
joseph.calderon@ucsf.edu  
 
Linda Connelly 
President 
Successful Reentry  
lconnelly@successfulreentry.com 
 
Emmeline Sun  
Citywide Forensic Case Management 
emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu 
 
Malcolm Gissen 
The SF Black & Jewish Unity Coalition 
malcolm@mgissen.com 
 

Heather Leach 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Housing Stabilizing Case Management 
hleach@ecs-sf.org 
 
Melanie Kim 
State Policy Director 
Public Defender’s Office 
melanie.kim@sfgov.org 

OR 
Carolyn Goosen 
Public Defender’s Office 
Carolyn.goosen@sfgov.org 
  
Sheenia Branner 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Program Manager 
Recovery Survival Network 
rsn.sheenia@gmail.com 
 
Josef Norris 
Member of the Reentry Community Development 
Coordinator 
Code Tenderloin 
onpaperpress@gmail.com 
 
Nick Gregoratos 
Directing Attorney, Prisoner Legal Services 
San Francisco Sheriff's Office 
nick.gregoratos@sfgov.org 
 
John Grayson III 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Student 
San Francisco State University 
johngrayson228@yahoo.com 
 
Nicole Violet Hardee 
Member of the Reentry Community 
nicolegortonhardee@gmail.com 
 
 
 

Page 30 of 33

mailto:bjones-hanley@americaworks.com
mailto:williammpalmer2@gmail.com
mailto:tara.agnese@sfgov.org
mailto:tara.anderson@sfgov.org
mailto:patricia.e.martinez@sfgov.org
mailto:joseph.calderon@ucsf.edu
mailto:lconnelly@successfulreentry.com
mailto:emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu
mailto:malcolm@mgissen.com
mailto:hleach@ecs-sf.org
mailto:melanie.kim@sfgov.org
mailto:Carolyn.goosen@sfgov.org
mailto:rsn.sheenia@gmail.com
mailto:onpaperpress@gmail.com
mailto:nick.gregoratos@sfgov.org
mailto:johngrayson228@yahoo.com
mailto:nicolegortonhardee@gmail.com


 

Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy & 
Practices 

Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of August 11, 2022  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Jermila McCoy 
San Francisco Goodwill  
Member of the Reentry Community 
jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
For more information, please contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Acting Reentry Policy 
Planner @victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or  
(415) 930-2202 or visit http://sfgov.org/reentry. 
 

Page 31 of 33

mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org


 

Women 1st Subcommittee 
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of  August 16, 2022  Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Roster of Members 
 
 

Juthaporn Chaloeicheep (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Substance Abuse Counselor 
Progress Foundation 
chaloeicheepj@gmail.com 
 
Alisea Wesley-Clark 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Program Director – Her House 
Westside Community Services 
aclark@westside-health.org 
 
Angie Wilson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Program Coordinator Women’s Resource 
Center (WRC) 
San Francisco Sheriff’s Office 
Women’s Resource Center (WRC)  
angela.wilson@sfgov.org 
 
Cristina Tucker 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Community Outreach Worker 
Healthright360 
ctucker@healthright360.org 
 
Tina Collins 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Code Tenderloin 
tina@codetenderloin.org 
 
Bionka Stevens 
stvnsb@gmail.com 
 
Traci Watson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Founder 
Sister’s Circle 
twatson@sistercircle.net 

 
Stephanie Gray 
Member of the Reentry Community  
Case Manager 
Gender Inclusive Reentry Program 
Community Forward SF 
stephanie.gray@communityforwardsf.org 
 
Jenna J. Rapues, MPH 
Director 
Gender Health SF, DPH 
jenna.rapues@sfdph.org 
 
Raquel Santia 
Member of the Reentry Community 
City College of San Francisco 
rsantia9@mail.ccsf.edu 
 
Rebecca Jackson 
Member of the Reentry Community  
Program Director – Cameo House 
CJCJ 
rjackson@cjcj.org 
 
Shannon Wise 
Member of the Reentry Community  
Felton Institute 
shannonwise2000@yahoo.com 
 
Sonia Crites 
Program Director 
Amity Foundation 
SCrites@amityfdn.org 
 
Jermila McCoy 
San Francisco Goodwill  
Member of the Reentry Community 
jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org 
 
 

Page 32 of 33

mailto:chaloeicheepj@gmail.com
mailto:aclark@westside-health.org
mailto:angela.wilson@sfgov.org
mailto:ctucker@healthright360.org
mailto:tina@codetenderloin.org
mailto:stvnsb@gmail.com
mailto:twatson@sistercircle.net
mailto:stephanie.gray@communityforwardsf.org
mailto:jenna.rapues@sfdph.org
mailto:rsantia9@mail.ccsf.edu
mailto:rjackson@cjcj.org
mailto:shannonwise2000@yahoo.com
mailto:SCrites@amityfdn.org
mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org


 

Women 1st Subcommittee 
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of  August 16, 2022  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Tina Brown 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Senior Resource Specialist 
Homelessness and Supportive Housing 
tina.brown@sfgov.org 
 
Kyara Banks 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Self-Determination Advocate 
Young Women’s Freedom Center 
kyara@youngwomenfree.org 
 
Tenaya Jones 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Self-Determination Advocate 
Young Women’s Freedom Center 
tenaya@youngwomenfree.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Nina Foster 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Code Tenderloin 
Nina@codetenderloin.org 
 
For more information, please contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Acting Reentry Policy 
Planner, at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or 
(415) 930-2202 or visit 
http://sfgov.org/reentry 

Page 33 of 33

mailto:tina.brown@sfgov.org
mailto:kyara@youngwomenfree.org
mailto:tenaya@youngwomenfree.org
mailto:Nina@codetenderloin.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org

	2.  REVISED - RC Agenda 10.20.2022
	DRAFT Minutes - 7.28.2022
	Thursday, July 28, 2022
	REMOTE MEETING VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE Watch via Zoom: In accordance with Governor Gavin Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to “Stay at Home” – and with the numerous local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions – aggressive di...
	District Attorney Brooke Jenkins (Chair); Sheriff Paul Miyamoto (SFSO), Chief Cristel Tullock (SFAPD), Angela Chan for Manohar Raju (Public Defender), Sheenia Branner (Mayoral Appointee), Robin Candler for Grant Colfax (DPH), Assistant Deputy Chief Am...
	James Caldwell for Mayor Breed, Chief William Scott (SFPD), Gregory Sims (CDCR), Mark Culkins (Superior Court), Yolanda Morissette (BOS Appointee), Oscar Salinas (BOS Appointee).
	1. Call to Order and Introductions (discussion only)
	2. Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California Government Code Section 54953(e). (discussion and possible action).
	The Reentry Council will consider adoption of a resolution making findings that newly-enacted Government Code Section 54953(e) requires in order to allow the Reentry Council to hold meetings remotely, as currently required under local law, without com...
	3. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement
	4. Public Comment on Items listed as for “Discussion Only” (discussion only)
	No Public Comment
	5. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022 (discussion & possible action)
	Chief Tullock made a motion to Accept Minutes.
	Sheenia Branner seconded the motion.
	Motion passed.
	6.  Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).
	a. Staff updates
	i. APD Reentry Services
	1. Minna Launch
	2. Pretrial Pilot Program
	b. Subcommittee updates
	i. Direct Services Subcommittee
	ii. Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee
	iii. Women 1st Subcommittee
	Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Policy Planner for the San Francisco Adult Probation Department, provided updates regarding the 3 Reentry Council Subcommittees:
	 The Legislation, Policy & Procedures Subcommittee has primarily focused on the legislation brought to the Council today. Their July 27, 2021 meeting was rescheduled to August 29, 2022 to plan for efforts to lobby with the Governor on the bills suppo...
	 The Direct Services Subcommittee will be moderating 3 panels at the upcoming Reentry Resource Fair on September 9, 2022. Their next meeting is on September 19, 2022
	 At the last Women 1st Subcommittee meeting, Epiphany Center presented information about their Road to Resilience program. Their next meeting will be on September 12, 2022 in which the Department on the Status of Women will be there to continue discu...
	Steve Adami, Director, Reentry Division of the Adult Probation provided updates regarding the Launch of the Minna Project, a 75 bed Dual Diagnosis Transitional Housing Program which has onsite clinical case management. Steve also provided an update on...
	10. Presentation:  “Housing Needs of Justice Involved Adults.”  A research project led by the Reentry Division of the San Francisco Adult probation Department and the Direct Services Subcommittee of the Reentry Council.  Destiny Pletsch – discussion o...
	11. Farewell to BOS Appointees – Jabari Jackson, Yolanda Morrissette, Michael Brown, Oscar Salinas (discussion only)
	District Attorney Jenkins thanked the 4 current Board of Supervisors’ Appointees to the Council for their service on the Council and the contributions they have made.
	Director Roye, Chief Tullock, and Sheenia Branner also thanked them for their service and the work they have done while on the council.
	District Attorney Jenkin explained that recruitment for the 4, now vacant positions will be conducted during August so that the seats will be filled by the October Reentry Council meeting. She further explained that current appointees can reapply for ...
	12. Introduction of the Just Home Project – Kaitlyn Motley (discussion only).
	Kate Motley, the Strategy and Planning Lead from the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing presented information on the Just Home Project, a new initiative led by the MacArthur Foundation and the Urban Institute intended to develop support...
	13. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only).
	Jabari Jackson expressed concern that he has asked numerous times for a presentation from Pretrial regarding their outcomes and there has yet to be a presentation.
	Victoria Westbrook explained that Pretrial will be invited to present at the October Reentry Council Meeting.
	Michael Brown would like the Sheriff’s Office to present about the current status of programming inside the SF County Jails and in person visits.
	Chief Tullock welcomed District Attorney Jenkins and looks forward to their working together.
	14. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council (discussion only).
	Numerous members of the public gave comments. Key points were the current state of the open air drug use and sales in the City and the need for culturally specific and appropriate services for monolingual Spanish speakers.
	15. Adjournment.


	CROP Presentation on Oct 22 2022
	RC 2022 calendar
	2022 Meeting Calendar

	Roster 1 FULL-COUNCIL-10.12.2022
	DS Roster 9.14.2022
	LPP Roster 8.11.2022
	Women 1st Roster 8.16.2022



